CHAIR DIEP
VICE CHAIR JUDEH

&
UEN 3 P RK COMMISSIONER DAVIS
A DL A COMMISSIONER PATINO

Center of the Southland COMMISSIONER SCHOALES

Wednesday, July 23, 2025, 6:30 PM
COUNCIL CHAMBER

6650 Beach Boulevard

Buena Park, CA 90621

PLANNING COMMISSION
AGENDA

6:30 p.m.

Members of the public may submit their comments in writing for the Planning Commission by
sending them to the Community and Economic Development Department at

bpplancomments@buenapark.com. Please submit all comments by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, July
23, 2025. Please contact the Planning Division at (714) 562-3620 for any questions.

1. GENERAL
1.A. CALL TO ORDER

1.B. ROLL CALL
1.C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

2.A. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

This is the portion of the meeting set aside to invite public comments regarding any matter within
the jurisdiction of the Planning Commission. Public comments are limited to no more than three
minutes each. If comments relate to a specific agenda item, those comments will be taken
following the staff report for that item and prior to the Planning Commission vote. Those wishing

to speak are asked to add their information at the digital kiosk located at the entrance of the
Council Chamber.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR
July 9, 2025
3.A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

4. PUBLIC HEARING



mailto:bpplancomments@buenapark.com

4.A. SHORT-TERM RENTAL NO. STR-25-000003
A request to operate a short-term rental within an existing 1,132 square-foot single-story, single-
family dwelling.

The property owner is WV Britton Family Trust, 7446 El Centro Way, Buena Park, CA 90620. The
applicant is Vershawn Britton, 7446 El Centro Way, Buena Park, CA 90620.
— RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends that the Planning Commission receive the staff
report and presentation together with any public testimony and, based on the information
provided, determine whether to approve, conditionally approve, or deny Short-Term Rental
Permit No. STR-25-000003.

5. STAFF REPORTS
5.A. STAFF REPORTS

6. AGENDA FORECAST
6.A. ANNOUNCEMENTS, CONFERENCE REPORTS AND CALENDAR REQUESTS

7. COMMISSION REPORTS
7.A. COMMISSION REPORTS

8. ADJOURNMENT
8.A. ADJOURNMENT

This agenda contains a brief general description of each item to be considered. Supporting documents are available for review and
copying at City Hall or at www.buenapark.com. Supplementary materials distributed to the Planning Commission less than 72 hours
before the meeting are posted to the City’s website at www.buenapark.com and copies are available for public inspection beginning the
next regular business day in the City Clerk’s Office. Video streaming of the meeting is available on the City’s website. This governing
body is prohibited from discussing or taking action on any item which is not included in this agenda; however, may ask clarifying questions,
ask staff to follow-up, or provide other direction. The order of business as it appears on this agenda may be modified by the governing
body.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need accommodations to participate in this meeting, contact the City Clerk’s
Office at (714) 562-3750 or the California Relay Service at 711. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to

make arrangements to assure accessibility.

If you would like to participate in any matter of business on the agenda and would like translation in Chinese, Korean, Spanish, Tagalog, or
Vietnamese, please contact the Planning Division at (714) 562-3620 48-hours prior to the meeting. Residents requiring translation during
Oral Communications are encouraged to bring interpreters.

Al2IH| 220f QU= HA| Obof CH3) 2| A2 LESIT AlOA AL, Z201, 51201, AT|L|4], EFL 20| it SERADE EREHAIH Al
48AIZH AlM7| QT A (714-562-3750) 1 2451A| 21 EIL|CE HAIOHA0| OfLl Z501 HolA| Zhol| WESHA 72, 2010 EUALE & 2Al

0 2AH ZASHI S LI CL

Si le gustaria participar en audiencia publica o cualquier asunto de negocios programado en la agenda y necesita traduccion en chino,
coreano, espariol, tagalo o vietnamita, comuniquese con la Oficina del Secretario de la Ciudad, 48 horas antes de la reunién al (714) 562-
3750. Para participar en los comentarios publicos sobre cualquier otro asunto dentro de la jurisdiccién del ayuntamiento, se les

recomienda que traiga un intérprete.

I, Ruth Santos, City of Buena Park, do hereby certify, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that a full and
correct copy of this agenda was posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54950 et. seq., at Buena Park City Hall, 6650 Beach Blvd.,
and uploaded to the City of Buena Park website www.buenapark.com.


http://www.buenapark.com/
http://www.buenapark.com/
https://www.buenapark.com/

Ruth Santos
Sr. Administrative Assistant

Date Posted: July 17, 2025



City of Buena Park

BUENAEDPARK

Coner of the Southlan Planning Commission Agenda Report

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Meeting Agenda Group
Wednesday, July 23, 2025, 6:30 PM CONSENT CALENDAR Item: 3A.

Matt Foulkes, Director of Community & Economic Development

Presented By

| I |
| Prepared By | Department Head Approval |
‘ Ruth Santos, Senior Administrative Assistant | |
| |
| |

Ruth Santos, Senior Administrative Assistant

Attachments

2025-07-09 PC M Draft.pdf



https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F687849d6b50d1300745fe591%2F2025-07-09%20PC%20M%20Draft.pdf?alt=media&token=a4dcb396-3eef-4a49-8180-cdb0ee0843d8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F687849d6b50d1300745fe591%2F2025-07-09%20PC%20M%20Draft.pdf?alt=media&token=a4dcb396-3eef-4a49-8180-cdb0ee0843d8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F687849d6b50d1300745fe591%2F2025-07-09%20PC%20M%20Draft.pdf?alt=media&token=a4dcb396-3eef-4a49-8180-cdb0ee0843d8

Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting of July 9, 2025 Vol. 32 - Page No. 6999

CITY OF BUENA PARK
MINUTES OF CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
July 9, 2025

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Buena Park convened at
6:30 p.m. on July 9, 2025, in the City Council Chamber, 6650 Beach Boulevard, Buena
Park, California, with Chair Diep presiding.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS: Davis, Judeh, Patifo, Schoales, and Diep

Matt Foulkes, Community and Economic Development Director
Harald Luna, Planning Manager

lan McAleese, Senior Planner

Chris Cardinale, City Attorney

Deepthi Arabolu, P.E., T.E., Assistant City Engineer

Ray Tae, Senior Office Assistant

Ruth Santos, Senior Administrative Assistant

1. GENERAL
1A.  CALL TO ORDER
1B.  ROLL CALL
1C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

None

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

3A.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES — May 28, 2025 Planning Commission Meeting
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

Vice Chair Judeh moved and Commissioner Davis seconded the motion to approve the
minutes of the May 28, 2025 Planning Commission meeting.

The motion carried unanimously.

AYES: 5 COMMISSIONERS: Judeh, Davis, Patino, Schoales, and Diep
NOES: 0 COMMISSIONER:

ABSENT: 0 COMMISSIONER:

ABSTAINED: 0 COMMISSIONER:



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting of July 9, 2025 Vol. 32 - Page No. 7000

4, PUBLIC HEARING

4A.  CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CU-24-14 AND VARIANCE NO. V-24-4

A request to allow the development of a four-story 124,000 square-foot self-storage facility
with a building height of up to 58’-6” and associated on- and off-site improvements; and a
Variance from the Buena Park Municipal Code Section 19.536.100 to allow a decrease in
the total number of required loading spaces from four to three at 8255 Orangethorpe
Avenue.

The property owner is Industrious Properties, LLC, 921 N Harbor Boulevard, Unit 619, La
Habra, CA 90631. The applicants are Sorlanda Moron Velez, 10540 Talbert Avenue, Suite
175, Fountain Valley, CA 92708 and Matthew Motland, Northwest Building, LLC, 10230 NE
Points Dr, Suite 410, Kirkland, WA 98033.

Mr. Castellanos presented the staff report.

In response to questions from Commissioner Schoales and Vice Chair Judeh regarding
security, Mr. Castellanos discussed safety measures in place for the proposed project. He
also addressed Commissioner Patifio’s question regarding the proposed landscaping plans.

There being no other questions of staff, Chair Diep opened the public hearing.

Matthew Motland, developer, introduced his company and discussed detailed security
measures for the proposed project.

There being no other speakers and no written communications, Chair Diep closed the public
hearing.

Vice Chair Judeh moved and Commissioner Patifio seconded the motion to adopt the
resolution approving Conditional Use Permit No. CU-24-4 and Variance No. V-24-4.

AYES: 5 COMMISSIONERS: Judeh, Patifio, Davis, Schoales, and Diep
NOES: 0 COMMISSIONER:
ABSENT: 0 COMMISSIONER:
ABSTAINED: 0 COMMISSIONER:

RESOLUTION NO. 6380
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CU-24-4
VARIANCE NO. V-24-4

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
BUENA PARK, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT TO ALLOW THE DEVELOPMENT OF A FOUR (4) STORY
124,000 SQUARE-FOOT SELF-STORAGE BUILDING WITH A BUILDING
HEIGHT OF UP TO 58’-6”; AND A VARIANCE FROM THE BUENA PARK
MUNICIPAL CODE (BPMC) SECTION 19.536.100 (LOADING AREAS) TO
ALLOW A DECREASE IN THE TOTAL NUMBER OF REQUIRED



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting of July 9, 2025 Vol. 32 - Page No. 7001

LOADING SPACES FROM FOUR (4) TO THREE (3) FOR THE PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 8255 ORANGETHORPE AVENUE (APN: 276-331-13), AND
MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF

5. STAFF REPORT:

Mr. Foulkes informed the Planning Commission that City Council upheld Planning
Commission’s denial of the Non-Conforming Use for Coral Motel, and approved the Text
Amendment, General Plan Amendment, and EIR to implement the 2021-2029 Housing
Element.

6. AGENDA FORECAST:

Mr. Foulkes announced that the July 23, 2025 Planning Commission meeting will include a
Short-Term Rental application.

7. COMMISSION REPORTS:

None

8. ADJOURNMENT:

At 6:53 p.m., Chair Diep adjourned the Planning Commission meeting.

Deborah Diep
Chair
ATTEST:

Harald Luna
Planning Manager



lly Of July 23, 2025
BUENA PUBLIC HEARING
Iltem No. 4A.

AL
P q’o 0
A »9[,' “,\\

SHORT-TERM RENTAL NO. STR-25-000003

Planning Commission Agenda Report

PREPARED BY PRESENTED BY
Robert Cravens , Code Enforcement Supervisor Robert Cravens , Code Enforcement Supervisor
REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY DIRECTOR APPROVAL

MATT FOULKES, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY AND

HARALD LUNA, PLANNING MANAGER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission receive the staff report and presentation together with any public
testimony and, based on the information provided, determine whether to approve, conditionally approve, or deny
Short-Term Rental Permit No. STR-25-000003.

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

The subject property is located at 7446 El Centro Way. The property is zoned Single-Family Residential (RS-6) and
has a General Plan designation of Low Density Residential. The property consists of a 1,132 square foot home
containing three bedrooms, two bathrooms and an attached two-car garage.

SURROUNDING LAND USE CHARACTERISTICS:

GENERAL PLAN ZONING EXISTING LAND USE
North Low Density Residential RS-6 Single Family Residential
South Low Density Residential RS-6 Single Family Residential
East Low Density Residential RS-6 Single Family Residential
West Low Density Residential RS-6 Single Family Residential

BACKGROUND:




In January 2020, the City Council adopted Ordinance 1675 (Attachment A), which created Section 19.348.080 of
the Buena Park Municipal Code (BPMC) and provided criteria for allowing Short-Term Rental (STR) units within
specific residential areas of the City. To date, there are (12) Short-term Rental permits issued throughout the City.
Code Enforcement utilizes a web-based software (RentalScape) which monitors over 10,000 short-term rental
websites to track both permitted and unpermitted short-term rental properties in the City. The applicant, Vershawn
Britton submitted a request to operate a short-term rental at 7446 El Centro Way on April 18, 2025 via the City’s
online application.

APPLICATION ANALYSIS:

Short-Term Rental Application Description:

The submitted application indicates that all three bedrooms of the 1,132 square foot home are proposed for short-
term rental (Attachment B). Consistent with BPMC requirements, the applicant will continue to live at the home as
their primary residence. The floor plan proposes a three-bedroom STR together with two bathrooms, closet space,
and laundry facilities. The application details note that no more than four adults will be permitted on-site as rental
guests or visitors, and including children, no more than six (6) cumulative adults and children will be allowed.
Additionally, the application materials specified that no more than four vehicles are allowed for all STR rental
guests and visitors. The site plan notes the ability to accommodate the parking for the proposed homeowner
vehicles (two) and STR maximum guest vehicles (four) within the garage and driveway areas of the home. Street
parking is allowed; however, the applicant proposes to limit street parking for STR guests to within the curbed along
the property frontage. Additionally, the applicant is proposing to have the STR managed by Kona Stays, LLC, which
is professional short-term rental management service.

STR Review Process

Code Enforcement Staff reviewed the application materials and found that it met the minimum Code requirements
and demonstrated compliance with the physical site and unit criteria. Pursuant to BPMC Section 19.348.080.D.2,
notice of the applicants’ request to operate a short-term rental at the subject address was sent to property owners
within 300-feet of the property. As a result of the mailed notices, the City received several written concerns along
with several phone calls from neighbors indicating concerns about the operation of the property for short-term
rental. Copies of the written comments received are provided in Attachment D. Some comments received from
neighbors of the proposed STR referenced a history of adverse impacts felt to be associated with guests of the
previous, unpermitted, STR and its operation and management at this site. Other comments received speculated
on the potential for future adverse impacts that may result should the property continue to be used for short-term
rental as well as questioning whether the property owner resided at the home as their primary residence.
Neighbors have asked that they remain anonymous due to the applicant’s history of adversarial interactions when
they have raised issues in the past.

As a result of the concerns / comments received about the short-term rental, and pursuant to section
19.348.080.D.4 below, the Director has determined that a public hearing is warranted.

"If the Director determines supplemental evidence at a public hearing is warranted to determine whether an
applicant will adequately mitigate potential adverse impact to the public health, safety, or welfare due to substantial
concerns raised by neighbors...the Director shall notice a public hearing of the Planning Commission. The
Planning Commission is authorized to deny, approve, or conditionally approve the permit in accordance with the
criteria set forth in this section."”

Planning_ Commission Determination




City Staff’'s review of the STR application has found it to be consistent with the provisions of the Code related to the
required physical development standards. Additionally, an inspection of the home by Code Enforcement found no
evidence to conclude that the property owners are no longer residing at the home. Absent the written and verbal
comments/concerns received by surrounding properties, the STR application would have been approved at the
staff level.

The Planning Commission is charged with making the determination as to whether the applicant can operate
an STR in a manner that will adequately mitigate the potential for adverse impacts upon the surrounding
neighborhood. In making its determination, the Planning Commission shall consider testimony provided by the
applicant and members of the public along with the information and exhibits provided in this agenda report. Based
on this information, the Planning Commission may approve, conditionally approve or deny the STR permit.

Two resolutions have been provided as part of the agenda report, a resolution to approve the STR, and a resolution
to deny the STR. The Planning Commission may also elect to add conditions to the resolution approving the STR.
Pursuant to Section 19.348.080.D.4, the decision by the Planning Commission is final.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT:

The proposed project has been reviewed pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and has
been deemed to be exempt from CEQA per Section 15301, Class 1 (Existing Facilities).

PUBLIC HEARING NOTIFICATION:

Notice of public hearing was posted at City Hall, the Buena Park Library, and Ehlers Event Center on July 10, 2025,
and 30 notices were mailed to property owners within a 300 ft. radius of the subject property on July 10, 2025.

Attachments

Vicinity Map.pdf
Ordinance 1675.pdf
Applicants submittal information site and floor plan_Redacted.pdf

Correspondence received from 300ft notice_Redacted.pdf

Additional materials received_Redacted.pdf
STR25-000003- Resolution to Approve.pdf
STR25-000003- Resolution to Deny.pdf



https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FVicinity%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=74d1a9ec-6f2a-4360-8d73-54bea10bb6a2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FVicinity%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=74d1a9ec-6f2a-4360-8d73-54bea10bb6a2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FVicinity%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=74d1a9ec-6f2a-4360-8d73-54bea10bb6a2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FOrdinance%201675.pdf?alt=media&token=ffae83f0-5d3a-4ef8-81e3-9c4cc691294f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FOrdinance%201675.pdf?alt=media&token=ffae83f0-5d3a-4ef8-81e3-9c4cc691294f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FOrdinance%201675.pdf?alt=media&token=ffae83f0-5d3a-4ef8-81e3-9c4cc691294f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FApplicants%20submittal%20information%20site%20and%20floor%20plan_Redacted.pdf?alt=media&token=a4935ad3-2916-4f7c-ae31-b8d34337184c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FApplicants%20submittal%20information%20site%20and%20floor%20plan_Redacted.pdf?alt=media&token=a4935ad3-2916-4f7c-ae31-b8d34337184c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FApplicants%20submittal%20information%20site%20and%20floor%20plan_Redacted.pdf?alt=media&token=a4935ad3-2916-4f7c-ae31-b8d34337184c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FCorrespondence%20received%20from%20300ft%20notice_Redacted.pdf?alt=media&token=433aa167-87fa-49cc-9998-60b4e4f069f2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FCorrespondence%20received%20from%20300ft%20notice_Redacted.pdf?alt=media&token=433aa167-87fa-49cc-9998-60b4e4f069f2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FCorrespondence%20received%20from%20300ft%20notice_Redacted.pdf?alt=media&token=433aa167-87fa-49cc-9998-60b4e4f069f2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FAdditional%20materials%20received_Redacted.pdf?alt=media&token=67619cce-ce73-4ace-85f3-06fc0407d330
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FAdditional%20materials%20received_Redacted.pdf?alt=media&token=67619cce-ce73-4ace-85f3-06fc0407d330
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FAdditional%20materials%20received_Redacted.pdf?alt=media&token=67619cce-ce73-4ace-85f3-06fc0407d330
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FSTR25-000003-%20Resolution%20to%20Approve.pdf?alt=media&token=99e7da06-4cc1-4249-a6cf-48dcd64808a8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FSTR25-000003-%20Resolution%20to%20Approve.pdf?alt=media&token=99e7da06-4cc1-4249-a6cf-48dcd64808a8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FSTR25-000003-%20Resolution%20to%20Approve.pdf?alt=media&token=99e7da06-4cc1-4249-a6cf-48dcd64808a8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FSTR25-000003-%20Resolution%20to%20Deny.pdf?alt=media&token=f36e7eaf-ef30-4d2c-bdbe-97904c4e5156
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FSTR25-000003-%20Resolution%20to%20Deny.pdf?alt=media&token=f36e7eaf-ef30-4d2c-bdbe-97904c4e5156
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/buenaparkca%2Factions%2F6875729b983b370074b223c4%2FSTR25-000003-%20Resolution%20to%20Deny.pdf?alt=media&token=f36e7eaf-ef30-4d2c-bdbe-97904c4e5156

BUENA PARK

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

VICINITY MAP

o

—gmr=q:" .

P - ,
e\ G
EL CENTRO WAY

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

PLANNING COMMISSION
Wednesday, July 23, 2025 - 6:30 p.m.

SHORT-TERM RENTAL PERMIT NO. STR-25-000003

7446 El Centro Way
APN: 136-163-34



B A Recitals,

.. ORDINANGENO. 1675 " . -

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF .
BUENA PARK, REGULATING SHORT-TERM RENTALS ON
PROPERTIES ZONED FOR SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCES,
ADOPTING TEXT AMENDMENT NO. C19-2 AND AMENDING
THE BUENA PARK ZONING ORDINANCE. :

organized under the constitution and laws of the State of California.

(i) It is the City Council's intent in adopting this Ordinance to implement new
development standards that are reasonably designed fo regulate short-term rental units
within the City limits, to the extent required and permissible by law. ‘

(i) The City Council hereby finds that unregulated fransient occupancy uses
in residential and nonresidential districts present a threat to the public welfare relating to
compatibility with residential uses and preservation of the character of the nelghborhoods
in which they are located.

(iv)  The City Council hereby finds that regulated .short-term rentals allow
residents to earn extra incoms thereby making their housing more affordable.

{v)  The City Council hereby finds that the adoption of a comprehensive

ordinance regulating the issuance of and operating conditions attached to short-term rental .

permits is necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare. The purpose of this
ordinance is to provide a permit system and to impose operational requirements to minimize
the potential adverse impacts of transient uses In residential neighborhoods and zoning
districts on traffic, noise, and density to ensure the health, safety and welfare of renters and
guests patronizing short-term rentals; and to impose reasonable limitations in order to
ensure the long term availability of housing stock in compliance with the Housing Element
of the City's General Plan.

: (vi)  The City Council hereby finds that provision of this ordinance which aliows
only residents to host guests in their home while they reside on-site, prevents permanent
long-term housing from being converted into short-term rentals operated for commercial
interest.

. (vii) . The City Council hereby finds that the provisions of this ordinance which
~+ allow only homéowners to operate a short-term rental is necessary to eliminate investor/

~ corporate owned and operated short term rentals, to maintain the residential integrity and
- adverse impacts from commercialization of City’s neighborhoods,

iy —":Fhia—é.ity offBuenafP;a’rk:?Gaiiforniaf(i‘eity”)' is & municipal corporation, duly



ORDINANCE NO. 1675 - -
Page}z‘ _ '

S (Vi) The City Council hereby finds“that. the provisions: of this:section “which, -

- Impose restrictions’on commercial speech, pursuant to the restrictions on advertisements =
set forth in this section, are necessary in order to advance the City's legitimate interest in
- breventing rental activity that violates this Code, and in regulating fraudulent, misleading, or -

- deceptive advertising. These restrictions on advertising are necessary In order to prevent

advertisers from engaging in untawful rental activity and from misleading the general public
to think that a particular property in the City is avallable for transient occupancy if, in fact,

- " the advertised property is not authorized to be used for transient occupancy purposes in.
- -accordance with this section. : | _

' (ix) TheCity Council héreby firids that thie City's regulation of short-term rental
© 'uses [n accordance with this section is a valid exercise of the City's police power in
o "*furtherﬂnce’o’f'"the’legiﬁmate*governmentaI*interests ’do*cum’ented*in*thls*s’éétiaﬁ_ -

(x) On May 14, 2019 the City Councll adopted Ordinance No. 1662, an
urgency ordinance pursuant to California Government Code Section 65858 for the clarifying

"-the existing prohibition on short-term rentals within the City.

(xI)  On June 25, the City Council adoptad Ordinance No. 1664, to extend the

- moratorium to August 13, 2019 and directed staff to begin drafting regulations to permit

short-term rentals within the City.

_ (xi)  On July 9, 2019 the City Council conducted a Study Session to discuss
policy considerations for regulating short-term rentals

(xii)  On August 13, 2019 the Clty Council adopted Ordinance No.1670, fo
extend the moratorium until May 14, 2020 to allow more time for the creation of regulations
and amendment to the City's Zoning Code.

(xiv}  On August 28, 2019 the Planning Commission conductad a study session/
community workshop to discuss first draft of the ordinance.

(xv)  On October 23, 2019, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed

“ | public hearing, to consider the Text Amendment No, G19-2.

_ (xvi)  On November 13, 2019, the Planning Commission conducted a duly
hoticed public hearing, to consider the Text Amendment No. C19-2.

_ (xvii) On January 14, 2020, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public
hearing, to consider the Text Amendment No. C19-2.

(xviii) Al legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Ordinance have occurred. -



- ORDINANCE NO. 1675
- Pagea e

B.Ordpance,

NOW, THEREFORE the City Council hereby ordalns as follows:

SECTION 1. The City Council finds that the facts set forth in the, Recitals, Part A, of this

Ordlnance are true and correct.

SEGTION 2. Section 19.348 Special Raqui’réﬁiérsts for Certain usés of Title 19 ofthe S

Buena Park Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows (addltrons in -undetriine,
deletions in strikethrough): :

719.348.080 RESIDENTIAL SHORT-TERM RENTALS

A. Scope, purpose and findings.
- The purposes of this section are to:

1. Document the procedures and regulations that govern the application for, and the

issuance and implementation of, permits for the operation of any residential short-term -

rental use within the City.

2. Establish that transient occupancy uses are not permitted or conditionally permitted in

residential or nonresidential zoning districts, unless either: (i) the City has approved a hotel_

use in a nonresidential zoning district pursuant to Title 19, or (if) the City has approved a
short-term rental permit pursuant to this section.

| B. Definitions.

“"Advertise" means any communication that induces or encourages any person to rent for transient
occupancy purposes, or that provides information (to any person) that promotes the availability to
~rent for transient occupancy purposes, any building in the City.

"Applicant" means any person, who seeks approva[ of a short-term rental permit under the
authority of this section.

“Authorized agent" means the person specifically authorized by a short-term rental host in lieu of
themsalves as the 24-hour emergency contact for a lawfully operating short term rental.

"Bedroom" means a room within a dwelling unit, other than a kitchen, living room or dining room,
which could be used for sleepmg purposes, is provided with natural light and natural ventilation,

and is separated by a door or archway from the rest of the dwelling unit. "Code" means the Buena

Park Mumclpal Code.

"Director” means the Director of the Commumty Deve!opment or designee. "Enforcement officer”

means the Director, Building Official, Fire Marshall, City Code Enforcement Officer, or-any other ) '
- - City employee designated by the Director or City Manager to enforce this section.




- ORDINANCE NO. 1675
- "Page 4. B

-+ "Guest" means an invitee of a renter-or other person visiting & renter of a shott-term rerital unit -
-~ who is not iisted on the rental agreement.". - : U ' : '

" “Host" means a person or persons holding feé title to the realj;i‘roperty that'Is the subject ofa

short-term rental permit and to whom the short-term permit Is issued.

"Owner” means a person or persons; not a corporation or a limited liability company, holding fee
title to the real property. ‘

. "Renter" means a person or 'personé', not & host, who have IaWﬁJIIy obtained the exclusive use
-and possessionh of the short-term rental property or portion thereof from its host or authorized
agent.

‘Resides” means legal residence, also referred to as primary residence of a property owner, as
reflected in title records, as evidenced by homeowner's exemption, voter registration, vehicle
registration, or similar means.

“Sign” shall have the same meaning as the term used in Title 18 Division 9 of this Code.

"Transient occupancy” shall have the same meaning as the term is used in Chapter 3.16 of this
Code.

"Short-term rental” means the renting of any portion of any structure or residential dwelling unit
for & period of not less than 12 hours and for a maximum of 29 consecutive days to a particular
occupant. A short -term rental shall not be considered as a hotel, extended stay hotel, motel or
corporats apartment.

"Shori-term rental unit" means the structure or residential dwelling unit in which the short-term
rental use is permitted to operate, pursuant to a permit issued in accordance with this section.

C. Short-term rental permit application.

No short-term rental may oberate without a permit as required by this Section 19.348 of the Buena
Park Municipal Code.

1. The Director shall accept “written applications for short-term Fem:al, permits in
accordance with this section. The Director shall make a decision and provide that
decision in writing within six (6) weeks of the date of receipt of a complete application.

2. Each application for a short-term rental permit shall be on a Citysprovlded:form and

shall include the following information and documentation, signed by the host, and-

otherwise in a form acceptable to the Director:
~ a.. Location of real property Where a short-term rental use Is proposed.

b. - 1dentity of the host(s) of thereal property on which the short-term rental is proposed
(include the name, malling address, email address, and 24-hour telephone

number). ldentity of the authorized agent on behalf of the host {include the name,

maifing address, email address, and telephone number)




ORDINANCE NO. 1675

F’age 5

| C Provlde adequate documentatlon such as: dnvers |1cense, voter registratlon
- vehicle registration, utifity bills or property tax records showing name of the host(s) =

and the short-term rental property address that estabhshes the host resndes at the -
short-term rental unit as their primary residence. :

d. A sketch of the floor plan, which Identifies s[eepmg areas, prdposed maximum
number of guests, evacuation route(s), location of fire extinguisher(s), and
approximate square footage in the vacation rental unit.

e. The maximum number of vehicles allowed for overnight ‘deoupants, - :ncludmg
host's and other long-term residents’ vehicles and location of designated on-site
parking spaces. All required garage spaces will be used for storage of operable

“yghicles.

f. Written acknowledgement and -agreement that the owner(s) have read and
agree(s) to all regulations pertaining to the operation of a short-term rental,
including this section, the City's business license requirements (Title 5.00 of this
Code), the City's transient occupancy tax requirements (Chapter 3.16 of this
Code), and any additional administrative regulations promuigated by the Director
to implement this section.

9. Copy of the standard rental agreement to be used by the short-term rental host,
including ‘house rules’, and any assoclated materials as required by Section E. 5
of this section. Wntten acknowladgement and agresment that claims, requests,
objections and arguments not set forth in the short-term rental parmit application,
prior to the final decision on the permit, are and shall ba deemed waived to the
maximum extent permitted by law.

n. Written agreerhent that any and ali use of the property for short-term
rental/transient occupancy purposes shall cease upon the expiration or revocation
of the short-term rental permit.

i.  Written agreement to hold harmless, indemnify and defend the City, its elected
officials, officers, employees, contractors, volunteers, and agents, against any and
all claims and liabilities arising out of, or related to the issuance of the short-term
rental permit, to the maximum extent permitted by law,

J. Declaration under penalty of perjury that the information submitted is accurate and
truthful, and that the applicant agrees to comply with all conditions of the permit
‘and this section.

k. Payment- of the application “and processing fee established by City Coundii
resolution based on the City's estimated reasonable costs to process and review
- the application materials, and to mail notice to property owners within. three
hundred feet _

"1 Previous active or exprred short-term renta! permlts on the property

" 'm‘ Letter oero Objectlon from the Home Owner's Association (if applicable).




ORDINANCE NO. 1675 . -
Page_G.__ e

8

. this section.

- Applications shall not be considered compléte until all documentation required under -
this section has been submitted, and until the full application and permit fees have’

"been paid. Incomplete applications will not be processed.

D. Decision on application.

The Director shall process and evaluate permit applications pursuant to this section.

1.

If the Director determines that an applicant has falied to satisfy the application

requirements of subsection C. of this Section, the Director shall provide written notice
to the applicant that the application has been denied and the basis for the denial.

Director will mail notice of applicant’s request to property owners within 300 feet of thé,

subject property. The Director will conslder any written comments received within ten

. (10) days of the mail of the notice, in his or her decision on the application.

- Property line of the property that is the subject of the permit application shall not be

within 300 feet of the nearest property line of any other short-term rental (approved or
conditionally approved by the Director pursuant to this section),

If the Director determines supplemental evidence at a public hearing is warranted in
order fo determine whether an applicant will adequately mitigate potential adverse
Impacts to the public health, safety, or welfare due to substantial concems raised by
neighbors, or to evaluate the impacts of a concentration of uses, under Section D.3
above, the Director shall notice a public hearing of the Planning Commission. The
Planning Commission is authorized to deny, approve, or conditionally approve the
permit in accordance with the criteria set forth in this section, particularly paragraph C
of this section. The Planning Commission's decision shall be final.

If the Director determines that an applicant has satisfled the application requirements
of subsection C. of this Section, and that the applicant has borne the burden of proving
that the applicant will adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts on the public
“health, safety, and welfare, the Director shall provide written notice to the applicant

that the shortterm rental permit is approved or conditionally approved, subject {0
compliance with the conditions identified by the Dirgctor in the notice. The conditional -

short-term rental permit shall be effective upon receipt of the applicant's written

“ . Any other infotmation that the Director deems reasonably necessary to administer - -

‘agreement to comply with all permit conditions set forth in the notice, and all

. requirements of this section and such date shall be set forth in the permit.

- Upon the Director's receipt of the signed agreement, the Director shall provide wiitten

notice to all property owners within 300 feet of the conditional or otherwise, approval

- of the short-term rental permit, which shall include the following:

a. A concise summary of the terms of the permit, including: ('1) the maximum nurber

of occupants permitted to stay in the shori-term rental unit; (i) any special



_ ORDINANCE NO. 1675
. Page7 .

" conditions or restrictions applied o the short-ter réntal permit; and (Il how to *
- -obtain a complete copy of the permit and this section. o o
-~ b. Tha Clty's Code Enforcement telephone nuriber at which. menibers of the public
may report violations of this section, the short-term rental permit, and any permit
condittons. .

: E. Conditions épplicable to pier‘mné.".
- Each short-term rentat permit Issugd pursuant to this saction shall be subject toall of the following -
- requirements: o L g .

“1. ~Short term rentals are perimitted in single familly re‘sldentiai’dﬁfetiiﬁé unitonly, Use of |

portions of a unit for ‘day-use’ for portions of a day shall not be permitted.

2. The host is required to reside on the property on which the short-term rental is located.
. Further, a sleeping area must, at a minimum, include shared use of a full bathroom.

3. The host shall comply with al requirements of and be subject to the Business License
Fees (Title 5.00 of this Code) and the Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) (Chapter 3.16
of this Code) for the short-term rental use. The TOT may be remitted by the hosting
platform on behalf of the host. The host shall have the duty and liability to ensure timely
remittance of the TOT to the Clty in compliance with Chapter 3,16 of this Code.

4. The host shall permit the Enforcement Officer to conduct an annual inspection of the
short-term rental premises to confirm compliance with this section. The City shall notify
the permiitee of the scheduled inspections at least 2 (two) weeks in advance.

a. The property address shall be visible from the street and in contrasting colors for
- quick identification by emergericy responders. :

b. Smoke detectors shall be installed per the California Building Code.
"~ ¢. No double keyed dead bolts may be installed on exit doors,

d. .. A fully charged, portable fire extingulsher shall be provided in an easily accessible
- and clearly designated area.

e. Exit doors may not be obstructed and/or prohibited from fully opening.

" f. Clearance from ignition sources such as luminaries, heaters and flame- producing
- devices shall be maintained In an approved manner. L

- g. Hotashes or coals shall be disposed In a metal container with a tight-fitting lid and
- kept a minimum of 10 feet from any structures. _ : -

h. Wood burning fire pits are not aflowed.

1. - No electrical wiring may be exposed or open in any outlet, switch or junction




 ORDINANGE NO. 1675 .

Page 8

g

- h.

The electrlcal breaker box shall be labeled for dletrrbutlon te appi:ancee and may__ :
not cortain ary open slots. - : . e

. There ehell be no unpermltted 1mprovements or modiflcatlons to the home or

garage.

An informational pecket of emergency numbers ehall be prepared for renters to
diract them In the event of an emergency.

. Each bedroom that is a patt of the short—term rental use shalt have an emergency'

escape or rescue exit plan posted.

All ﬁvi'm’ming pools and spas must meet 2 of 'tﬁ'e;?;”fs’efety féa’tﬁfee!is‘.tea’ﬁelew;'"'_'f

as defined in Article 2.5 of the State of California Health and Safety Code.

(1) An enclosure that meets the requirements of California Health and
Safety Code Section 115923 and isolates the swimming pool or spa from
the private single-family home,

- (2)y Removable mesh fencing that meets American Society for Testing and
Materials (ASTM) Specifications F2286 standards in conjunction with a
gate that is self-closing and self-latching and can accommodate a key
lockable device.

(3) An approved safety pool cover, as defined in subdivision (d) of
California Health and Safsty Code Section 115921.

(4) Exit alarms on the private single-family home's doors that provide direct
access to the swimming pool or spa. The exit alarm may cause either an
alarm noise or a verbal warning, such as a repeating notification that “the
door to the pool is open.”

_ {5) A self-closing, self-latching device with a release mechanism placed no
- lower than 54 inches above the floor on the private single-family home's
~ doors providing direct access 1o the swimming pool or spa.

(8) An alarm that, when placed in a swimming pool or spa, will sound upon

detection of accidental or unauthorized entrance into the water. The alarm

shall meet and be independently certified to the ASTM Standard F2208

"Standard Safety Specification for Residential Pool Alarms,” which includes

surface motion, pressure, sonar, lasér, and infrared type alarms. A

" swimming protection alarm feature desighed for individual use, including

©an alarm attached to a child that sounds when the child exceeds a certain

_ distance or becomes submerged in weter is not a qualifying drowning
prevention safety feature. , _

(7) Other means of protection, lf the degree of protectlon afforded is equal

to or greater than that afforded by any of the features set forth above and -
has been independently verified by an approved testing laboratory as



ORDINANCE NO. 1675

. Page 9

meetang standards for those features established by the ASTM or the :
Amerlcan Society of Mechamcal Engmeers (ASME) ' Lo

- 5. Short term Tental host shall be respons:ble for 1nforming thelr renters of the 'house'*
rules’. Such rules shall, at a minimurm, include rules as explained in this paragraph. As
~ part of the application for rental, the prospective renter shall sign an agreement
acknowledging the house rules and promising to comp!y with the following:

promment location inside the short—term réntal unit.

; The permlttee shall provide access to'the garage of the res;dence if that area has o

3

renters.,

‘It is the intent of the City to enforce all applicable provisions of State law related to
-the provision for emergency vehicle access. Accordingly, no limousine or bus

parking, and no stopping without the driver's presence, shall be allowed in any
manner that would interfere with emergency vehicle access. In the event of an
emergency, the vehicle driver shall immediately move the vehicle from the
emergency access area,

Renter and/or guests of the short-term rental unit shall maintain the property free
of debris both on-site and in the street, Trash cans shall be maintained in a clean
and sanitary manner in conformance with this Code. Trash cans shall not be
placed on the street prior to 24 hours before pick up day and shall be promptly
removed from the street following service.

Quiet times shall be from 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.

The renters and/or guests of the short-term rental shall not create unreasonable
noise or disturbances, engage in disorderly conduct, or violate provisions of this
Code or any State law pertaining {0 noise or disorderly conduct. Further, the
permittee shall contact the Police Department in the event renters or guests fail to
comply with this subsection. .

No shori-term rental unit may be used for any wedding, auction, commercial
function, or other similar event that is Inconsistent with residential uses permitted
by this Code.

Pets may be permitted by the shortwterm rental business host, provided the pei is
attended to at all times and has current vaccmations .

Discharge of fireworks is prohibited except on the 4 of July, between the hours of
10:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. _

Maximum bccupancy permitted withln: the éctive‘“éhéﬁ term rental permit.. .'

~~ No person shall advertise the use of a building in a residential or nonresidential zonihg"ﬂ

district of the City for a transient occupancy use unless: (&) the use is a hotel use in a




~ ORDINANCE NO. 1675
- - Page 10 B

- a.current City Issuéd short-term rental permit for the property All_advertisement for
short-term rentals must include the City Issued short-term rental permit number.,

7. There shall be no srgns or other structures except those permitted for a dwelling use

in the zone,

- 8. Pools and hot tubs sha[l have the hours of operation clearly posted adjacent to the:

-facility. Hours shall comply with the hours set forth in Sect:on ES5. 6.

'9 Lighting on prem:ses shall be dlrected controlled, screened, or shaded in such a
‘manner as not to shine directly on surrounding premises. Lighting on premises shall | -
~ becontrolied 50 as to prevent glare on driveways, walkways, and public thoroughfares.

The use of unshaded clear bulbs in exterior lighting is prohibited.

10. A short-term rental shall not operate on a property where an accessory dwelling unit
exists. A short-term rental permit shall become void upon approval of an accessory
dwelling unit on a property.

11. Structures not built for habitable use. such as but not limited to tents, trailers, tree
houses, garage, storage shed; or temporary structures such as recreational vehicles
shall not be used for short-term rentals or to satisfy the host occupant requirement of
“this section.

12. A host shall maintain liability insurance of not less than $1,000,000 to cover each
short-term rental unless such short-term rental is offered through a-hosting platform
that maintains equal or greater coverage.

13. Maximum occupancy of a residential unit with an active short term rental permit shall
be limited to 2 (two) adults per bedroom and 2 {iwo) additional aduits for the entire
unit. There is no occupancy limitation on the number of accompanied children under
the age of eighteen.

14. All short-term rental hosts must maintain a detailed and accurate record of their guest
information pertaining to hosting dates, and financial documentation, and make this
information available to relevant authorities upon request. Hosts must keep this record
for five years and may be audited to ensure tax compliance.

15. For each short-term rental use:
a. The host or the authorized agent must be available to the Enforcement Officer and . -
the renter, by telephone 24 hours per day, 7 days per week when the short-term -

rental Is rented. :

“b. The host or authorized agent must be on the premisés of ihe short-term rental unit R

within one hour of _being notified (by a renter, or by the Director or Enforcement -

. Officer) that there is a need for the host or the authorized agent to address an
Issue of permit compliance or the heatth safety, or welfare of the public or the
renter.

nonresndenhal zoning distnct approved by the C|ty pursuant to Tit!e 19;or (b) there f§




- 16 Only one shcrt-term rental permit w1thin the City, per andwldual shali be m eff’ect at any S

. _ ORDINANCE NO. 1675
} .Pageﬂ : .

trme

F. Restnctlons oh permlt transfer.

Each short-term rental permit issued in accordance with thls section shall be personal to the host

- to whom the permit is issued, and no person shall transfer, or attempt to transfer, the permit to = K
~ any other person, unless the transfer is made In accordance with this section. Any attempt to

transfer a short-term rental permit, or use a transferred short-term rental permit, that Is not

transferred in accordance with this section shall be voud and ahali conshtute a wo!atlon of thls L
——Code. D —

1.
2.

A shorbterm rental pemn[t"shaif not be transferred by any person.

If the residencs is sold to a new owner, the pef"mit is void and the new owner will need
to apply for a new short-term rental permit in their own name.

If the permit requires a name change due to a partlal change in ownership, the new
owner(s) can be added or removed from the permit by written notice to the Director.
The written notice must include the reason for the change, documentation partial
change in ownership, such as marriage certificate, divorce decree etc., the name(s)
and contact information to be removed and the name(s) and contact information to be

added. All parties on the current permit and any new parties, must sign and the

document must be notarized.

G. Permit renewal and annual review.

1.

Unless revoked by the Director earlier pursuant to this Section, a permit to operate a
short-term rental expires three (3) years after the date of its issuance.

A host shali apply for renewal prior to the expiration of the permit on a form provided
by the Director no later than thirty (30) days prior to its expiration. The host shall
update the information contained In the original permit application required per this
Section, if any information has changed. The host shall sign a statement affirming that
there is either no change in the information contained on the original permit application
and any subsequent renewal applications, or that any information that has been
updafed is accurate and complete.

An application for permit renewal received "after”-the expiration of the current permi't
shall be treated as an application for a new permit set forth in this Section.

. The Director shall follow the procedures set forth in this article when determining

whether to renew a permit.

Upon explration of any short-term rental permlt it sha!l be of no further force; validity

‘or effect, and use of the property for transient occupancy purposes shall cease.




ORDINANCE NO. 16?5

. Pagetz

6 An annual [nspectlon shall be conducted The' host shali submlt to the Dlrector the,_ _

- annual mspactlon fee along with all of the mformatlon set forth in this section.
- a. The host shall pay the annual tnspection fee estabhshed by City Council resolutson
based on the City's estimated reasonable costs to perform the annual Inspections
identified in this section.

b. 'The host shall comply with the requirements of Section E.

¢. The host shall document comphance with all requlrements of the Business Llcense.

Ordinance (Title 5.00 of this Code).

“d. The host shall provide evidence of compliance with all requirements of the Transient

Occupancy Tax Ordinance (Chapter 3.16 of this Code), as may be required by the
Director. The host shall also document each date on which the shott-term rental
was rented during the previous term of the permit (if applicable).

H. Director's action following annual inspection.

Following-an annual permit Inspection:

1.

If the Director determiries that the host Is in com pliance with all requirements of this section
and the permit, the Director shall provide written notice to the host and authorized agent
that the inspection passed.

If the Director determines that the host has failed to comply with this section or the permit
conditions, the Director shall provide written notice of the inspection fallure, listing what
defects were found. The host shall be allowed to remedy any defect as identified by the
Director, by submitting proof of remedy within 30 days. if the permiitee does not submit
proof of remedy within 30 days, subsection J of this Section shall be followed.

I. Permit modification, suspension, or revocation.

1.

At any time during the term of a short-term rental permit, the Director may modify,
suspend, or revoke the short-term rental permit (or pursue any other remedy set forth in
Title 1 of this Code), if the Director makes any of the following findings:

a. a short-term rental use is detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare; or

b. the host has provided false or misleading information in connection with any
submittal required under this section or this Code; or

C. the host is in violation of, or has falled to comply with, any requwements of this
section, the permit-terms and conditions, this Code, or any state or federal law; or,

d. if the Host has not rented the short-term rental for a minimum of i0 iotai days within -

any 12 month period.

. "in the event 'the Director finds any of the abdve firdings and orders the modification,
“suspension, or revocation of a short-term rental permit (_whichever the case may be), the




ORDINANCE NO. 1675° -
Page 13 E e

- . Violation and penalties.

9,

It shall be unlawful for ahy-person to violate am} provision or fail to comply with any

requirement of this section. Any person who violates any provision of this section, or fails -
. to comply with any obligation or requirement of this section, or who fails to comply with

-~ any order or notice Issued pursuant to the provisions of this section, is guilty of a

'Ll‘ misdemeanor offense punishable in accordance with Chapter1.04 of this Code. Nothing -~
* in this section shall prevent the city attorney or city prosecutor from prosecuting a violation
- of this chapter as an infraction, at his or her discretion, as set forth in Chapter 1.04 of this
" "Code. B - o '

Each violation of this section shall be a separate offense for eaéh and every day,' or part
thereof, during which a violation of this section, or of any law or regulation referenced

" Director shall provide written notice to the permittee of his of her dedision by certified mall
'-;;-_t_o the name and address listed on the permit. - - o T - R

herein, Is allowed, committed, continued, maintained or permitted by such person, and -

shall be punishable accordingly.

In addition to the remedies set forth in this section, any person who violates any provision
of this section, or fails to comply with any obligation or requirement of this section, or who
fails to comply with any order or notice issued pursuant to the provisions of this section, is

- subject to any and all civil and administrative penalties and remedies authorized under

Chapter 1.04 of this Code.

Public Nuisance. In addition to the penalties provided by this section, any condition or
activity caused or permitted to exist in violation of any provision, restriction, or requirement
of this section or any notice, order, or permit issued pursuant to this section, shall be
deemed a public nuisance and may be summarily abated by the city by any and alt means
(clvil, administrative, and/or equitable) as provided by law or in equity.

K. Appeals.

Any determination made by the Director pursuant {o this section shall be final unless appealed
pursuant to the requirements of this section.

1.

Any decision by the Director to approve, conditionally approve, or deny a permit
application, or to modify, suspend, or revoke a permit, or to impose any penalty or
undertake any enforcement action permitted herein, may be appealed only to the Planning
Commission. A written appeal must be received by the Director within ten (10) business
days of the date the appealed decision was rendered or action was taken. Upon receipt
of an appeal within ten (10) working days, the Director will schedule a public hearing before
the Planning Cominission. The Planning Commission may affirm, reverse, or conditionally

- reverse the Director's decision and the Planning Commission's decision shall be final.’

. -Failure to file an appeal within ten (10) bu-sihess days of the date the appealed;decis_ibh :
was rendered, or action was taken shall constitute a waiver of the appeal and a failure to

exhaust administrative remedies, and shall preclude any and -all relief and claims arising
in connection with the determination by the Director pursuant to this section.



_ORDINANCE NO. 16?5

Page 14

SECTION 3 Tab!e 19 312 010 Uses Permltted ‘

follows (additiori in underline and deletron in smkemmugh)

. , -Single—Family Resndenﬂal Zones of
Chapter 19.312-of Title 18 of the Buena Park Municipal Code is hereby amended fo read as

- Table 19.312.010

" USES PERMITTEDMSINGLE-FAMILY RES!DENTIAI. ZONES

Resndential Zones

USES

Residential Uses

Single-Family Dwellings:

Y P

Public Service Uses

Community Day Care:

P -

P

P

* Site-built. P P P C
¢ Manufactured. p p P P
* Single-family cluster, (15) _ C [
* Transitional/supportive housing. p P P P C
Community Residential Care;
* Small group care home. p p p p P
* Other community residential care
facility. ' c ¢ ¢ ¢
Reslidential Accessory Uses:
* Accessory dwelling units. (1) P p p P P
* Guesthouse. C C C C C
* Home occupation. (2) p P P p P
« Short-term rental. (19) I 1 | | 1
» Animal keeping. (3) P -P P p p
* Swimming pool, therapautic pool, '
recreatiﬁlfal structurz. ’ P P d P P
* Clubhouse, meeting room, game
room, gvmnasium, 5auna, health | {noted) | (note4) | (noted) | (noted) | (noted)
center (private use only}, ' .
» Parking, within garage. 2 P P P P
* Parking, under carport. (note5) | (note5) | (note5) | (notes) | (note5)
* Parking, uncovered. {note 5} | (note5) | (note5) | {noteS) | (note5)
| * Yard sale. (6) K P




 ORDINANCE NO. 1675 -
.. Page1s . .

e Table 19:312:010

USES PERMITTED—SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONES

Uses

Residential Zones

RS-16

R5-10

RS-8

RS-6

» Small group child day cal;e home
(1-14 children). (17)

!

* Smali group adult day care home
(1-6 adults).

¢ Child day care centér. (7}

Ci

(&)

» Adult day care center. (7)

G

Ci

Public Assembly: (See also Recreation)

» Church. (8), (9)

* Emergency shelter. (18)

Education:

« Educational institution. (9) -

Re’creation: {see also Division 5,

Commercial Uses - Commercial

Recreation.)

* Public park, public playground, |
public recreational area, public
landscaped open space, public-

owned historical site or feature.

* Community recreation center,

Utilities and Communications (16}):

+ Aviation navigational aids.

+ Public utility facilities or
structures, including electrical
substations and cellular
telephone facilities.

Transportation: _

* Parking lot. -

Agricultural Uses

» Horticultural production, plant
nursery (no sales), keeping of
livestock. {10)




ORDINANCE NO. 1675
Page 16 :

. Table19.312.010

USES PERMITTED—SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIALZONES =

Residential Zones -

Uses o : RS-16 | RS-10 RS-8 | RS-6 | PD(14)

* Horticultural productlon, plant '
“nursery (with sales). (11)-

- | Temporaty Uses .

| * On-site construction facilities. (12) , P

s On-site real estate sales office, i
(13)

Notes:

1 Special requirements apply for accessory dwelling units. See. Sectionr'l 9.348.010.
2 Special requirements apply for home occupations. See Section 19.348.030.

3 Special requirements apply for animal keeping. See Section 19.348.050.

4 Permitted as an incmlental use for a single-family cluster housing development See
Section 19.348.020.

5 In the RS zones, carports and uncovered parking are permitted for parking spaces which
‘are in addition to the required garage spaces.

"~ | 6 Special requirements appiy for yard sales. See Section 19.348.040.
7 Permitted with a conditional use permit as an incidental use ";':')rowded that sufficient

" parking and circulation can be prowded on the property and the hours of operation for the
incidental use will not conflict with the primary use. : :




[8 " Tnall residential zones in T which churches are permutted Such ohurohes Shall bs iooated ¢ on’ g o
-and orlented to a major; primary, or secondary highway as defined and demgnated in the R

| 1 0 -Applies to A Ove'rlay" Zone only. See Seéﬁdnj 0.312.040.

ORDINANCE NO. 16?5
Page 1?‘ .

| . Buena Park General Plan

9 - Bingo games shall be p?ermittéi:l as an accessory use only wheh authorized under Chapter
- 5.16 et seq.,.and only when fire and safety regulations are met and parking facliities are
._ fully conforming to the requirements for public assembly use.

SEY ;SpeaCialr‘equiremeniéfapplyﬁfor agricultural uses. See Section 19.348.060, - |

12 Offices, storage, activities, and facilities directly pertaining to construction for a
permitted use on the same site provided construction is not suspended for more than 30
_ consecutive days.

13 Temporary real estate sales office, only for sales or leasing of new subdivision and for not
more than 1 year..

14 Permitted uses and intensity of use in the PD zone shall be determined in a public
hearing subject to the provisions.

15 Special requirements apply for single-family cluster developmenis. See
Section19.3486.020.

16 See Division 12 of Zoning Ordinance.
17 Al applicants shall comply with the State Heaith and Safety Code with regard to the
maximum number of children that may be supervised at any one time based on
- applicable standards and criteria. In no case, shall the total number of children

supervised at any one time at any residence exceed 14.

18 épeciai requirements apply for emergency shelters. See Section 19.348,070.

19. ~Special requiremenis_apply for short-term rentals, See Section 19.348.080

SECTION 4 Table 19.412.010 uSes Parmitted — Multl-Famlly Residential Zongs of
Chapter 19.412 of Tiﬂe 19 of the Buena Park Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as -

_follows {addition in underline and deletion in stﬂke%hrebigh)




. ORDINANCE NO. 1675
Lo Pagedt8

- | Table 19.412:010 " *

USES PERMITTED—MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL

ZONES
, Residential Zones
‘Uses: - [RMH[RM-|RW-]PD
e 10 | 20 [(12)}
Residential Uses I : . ) _ .
~______|Single-Family Dwellings: -
+  Site-built. PiP|C
*  Manufactured. PP
»  Single-family cluster. (13) | cl|C}tC
Muitifamily Dwellings: (1)
* Multifamily apartments. P|P|C
* Transitional/supportive PP |C
housing.
+  Condominium, stock cicCc|C
cooperatlve, community
apartments. (2)
Mobilehome Park: (3)
»  Undivided ownership. P
*  Condominium or planned C c
unit development
ownership.
Group Quarters: ,
«  Convent, rectory, c|C
roominghouse, dormitory,
fraternity or sorority
house, efc.
Transient Quarters; (See Division
5, Commercial Uses—Tourist e
Services.) N '
Community Residential Care:
* Small group care home. Pl PP
» Other community cC | C
. residential care facility. '
Residential Accessory Uses:




ORDINANCE: NO 1675
Page19 B

" Tame19442010

B USES PERMITTED—-MULT|FAM[LY RESIDENTIAL

ZONES

' Residentia! \Zones'

Public Service Uses

Community Day Care;

Use*s RMH [RM-|RM-( PD | -
oL ' 1020 |(12)]
® Accessory dwelling umt PP | P |
Lo un ]
. Guesthouse.
* Home occupation. (4) PI.P|P|P
+ __Short-term rental. (18) | ! [ |
*  Animal keeping. {5) P (P | P | P
+  Swimming pool, P P|P|P
therapeutic pool,
recreational structure.
» Clubhouse, meeting room,| § i I | C
game room, gymnasium,
sauna, health center
{private use only). :
+ Rental management office, | | I ! |
storage room.
+ Parking, within garage. P Pl PP
* Parking, under carport. P P| PP
* Parking, uncovered. P Pl PP
* Yard sale. (6) P PP |P

(intermediate care or

skilled nursing).

* Small group child day care P PP
home {1-14 children). (15)

+  Small group aduit day PIP|P
care home (1-6 adults). _

* Child day care center. (7) Ci) Ci|Ci

= Adult day care center. {7) Ci| Ci|Ci

Heaith Facilities:
+ Long-term care C | C




- - ORDINANCE NO. 1675 .-
- .Page 20

Table 0 19412, 010

- USES PERMITTEDmMULTI FAM[LY RESIDENT!AL
*|ZONES

_ Reéidaniial Zones
-  Uses RMH | RM- | RM-| PD
o 110120 (| (12)

= PUinc Assembly: (Séeialso

" |Recreation.)

»  Church. (8), (9) cC|C

* Emergency shelter. (18) I !
Education:

* Educational institution. (9) ¢ | C
Recreation;

«  Public park, public PIPI|P

playground, public
recreational area, public
landscaped open space,
public-owned historical
site or feature.
+  Community recreation P P|C
cenfer,
Utilities and Communications:
(14)
« Aviation navigational aids. | C ci{C|C
*  Public utility facilities or cC|C | C
structures, including
electrical substations and
cellular telephone
facllities.

| Transportation;

= Parking lot.
: *  Parking structure.
- |Temporary Uses |
*  On-site construction
 facilities. (10) _ L
* On-site real estate sales PP |PI|P
office. (11)




ORDINANCENO.1675 . -
Page 21 R

.,,See also “Archﬁectural Desugn Gundeiines for Multtfamtly Low and Medlum Density

" -Residential Developments" in a separate document adopted by Resolution # §934.

10

11

12

13

14" See Division 12 of Zoning Ordinance.

15

16

Special requirements apply for animal keeping. See Section 19.448.060.

Special requirements apply. See Section 19.448.030.

’Special requirements apply for mobile home parks. See Saction 10.448.020,

Special requirements_épply for home occupations. See Section 19.448.040.

Special requirements apply for yard sales. See'Section 19.448.050.

Permitted with a conditional use permit as an incidental use provided that sufficient parking

and circulation can be provided on the property and the hours of operation for the incidental

use will not conflict with the primary use.

In all residential zones in which churches are permitted, such churches shall be located on i
and oriented to major, primary, or secondary highway as defined and as designaied in the
Buena Park General Plan.

Bingo games shall be permitted as an accessory use only when authorized under Chaptérﬂ'
5.16 et seq., and only when fire and safety regulations are met and parking facllities are fully
conforming to the requirements for public assembly use.

Offices, storage, actlvities, and facilities directly pertaining to construction for a permitted
use on the same site provided construction is not suspended for more than 30 consecutive
days.

Temporary real estate sales office, only for sales or leasing of new subdivision, and for not
more than 1 year

Permitted uses and intensity of use in the PD zone shall be determlnad in a public hearmg,
subject to the provisions of the General Plan for the individual area designated as Planned

Development.

Special requirements apply for single family"cl'bster developments. See Section 19,448.(')'35‘.;

All applicants shall b‘oﬂmply with thé"St‘ét’e'-:}t—"Iealth and Séféty:j;C'bdé with regard to ‘fhe"';-

maximum number of children that may be supervised at any 1 time based on applicable
standards and criteria. in no case, shall ths total number of children supervised at any 1
time at any resndence exceed 14.

Special requirem'ents'apply for emergency shelters. See Secfion.19.448.ﬁ70. .




ORDINANCE NO. 1675
Page 22

47 As an accessory o smgle famlly dwelling Spec;al reqwrements apply for accessory dwellmg o S

units See Section 19.348.:010.

18 As tncldental to .a single fami iy dweliinq only. Special reguiremegts applv for shortnterm
rental units. See Section 19.448.080.

SECTION 5. Section 19,448 Spedial Requrrements for Certain Uses of Title 19 of the
Buena Park Municipal Code Is hereby amended to read as follows: : : "

' 19.448.080 RESIDENTIAL SHORT-TERM RENTALS - ©

Refer to Section 19.348.080 of Title 19. of the Buena Park Municipal Code.

SECTION 6. The City Council hereby finds that this Zoning Text Amendment No. C19-2
Is statutorily exempt from California Environmenta! Quality Act review pursuant to sections
15060(c)(2), 15060(c)(3), 15061(b)(3), and 15301 of the State CEQA guidelines, because it will
not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable Indirect physical change in the environment,
because it involves operation, permitting, licensing, and/or leasing of existing private structures
or facilities involving negligible or no expansion of existing or former use, because there Is no
possibility that it may have a significant effect on the environment, because it is not a project, as
defined in section 15378 of the CEQA guidelines, of the Public Resources Code, of the California
Code of Regulations.

SECTION 7. Severability. The City Council declares that, should any provision, section,
paragraph, sentence, or word of this Ordinance be rendered or declared invalid by any final court
action in a court of competent jurisdiction, or by reason of any preemptive legislation, the
remaining provisions, sections, paragraphs, sentences and words of this Ordinance shall remain
in full force and effect.

SECTION 8. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14" day of January 2020. by the following called vote:
AYES: - COUNCILMEMBERS: Brown, Traut, Park, Swiff, Smith

NOES: - COUNCILMEMBERS: None

ABSENT: - ‘COUNCILMEMBERS: None

ABSTAIN: * COUNGILMEMBERS: None




" ORDINANCE NO. 1675

e Page 23

) Clty C!erk\l

1, Adrla M. Jimenez MMC Clty Clerk af theCtty of Buena Park, Cahforma do hereby

certlfy that the foregoing ordinance was introduced and passed at a regular meetmg of the City - _

*Councii of the City of Buena Park held on the 14" day of January 2020,

City Glerk




KW Speciaity Insurance Company
P.O. Box 15310

Scottsdale, AZ 85267-5310

(855) 225-6597
winw.kwspecialty.com

Coverage Options

Below we have outlined some of our most common endorsements. These are a few ways that we can help protect your
home and your peace of mind.

Coverage Description of Coverage
Limited Water Back-Up and Sump Discharge Provides coverage for direct physical foss due to water backing up
Cr Overflow {hrough sewers or drains and water that overflows from a pump.

This Is not flood coverage.

Personal Praperty Replacement Cost ~ When purchased, you will be able to replace stolen or destroyed
- S o - pioperty with like kind and quality without deduction for depreciation.

Equipment Breakdown Pravides coverage for physical loss or damage fo equipment
caused by mechanical breakdown, electrical or electronic
breakdown, or rupture, bursting, bulging, implosion or steam
explosion.

Service Line Provides coverage for direct physical loss to a service line such as
slectrical power, natural gas, waste disposal, and water caused by
items such as wear and tear, rust, deterioration, or freezing.

{(HO-3 Only)

|dentity Fraud Provides $15,000 coverage for identity fraud committed against the
instired.

Payment Options

All policies will be on a direct bill pay plan. Payment Options include One Pay, Two Pay, Four Pay, and Monthly
Recurring where available,

The KWIQ system will automatically print and mail an invoice to the insured the night a policy is issued, if payment is not
recorded at the time of issuance.

To avoid mailing an invoice fo the insured {as you have the check for the policy in hand), e-mail the KW Specialty

accounting team at accounting@kwspecialty.com with a request to block invoices for 7 days. Within 7 days KW Specialty

accounting team must receive the check via mail.

1091 HO 202402

Page 50f 6



KW Specialty Insurance Company
P.O. Box 156310

Scottscale, AZ 85267-5310

(855) 226-6597
www.kwspecialty.com

Quote Number: - Quiote Effective Date: - Quote Initiation Date:-

Prepared By Producer:

Pancrama Insurance Associates Inc,1006-11502
P.LA., Inc. Professional Ins. Asscciates

3009 Douglas Bivd. #300Roseville, CA 95661
(650)692-7333

04/09/2026

Wholesale Agent
JE Brown & Associates, 1006

Named Applicant and Location Address:;

The purchase of a home Is the single largest investment most peaple will make in their lifetime. Homeowners insurance is a
security net for your investment. Thank you for the opportunity to assist you in assessing your personal insurance neads. We
are pleased to present to you the following persenal insurance proposal:

Policy Type and Occupancy: HO3, Short-term rental

Premium Information

Basic Pramium: $4,642.00
Policy Fee: 150.00
Carrier Fee: $115.00
Surplus Lines Tax: $147.21
Stamping Fee: $8.83
Total Policy Premium: $5,063.04

The minimuim earned premium is $50.

Disclosure: The premium estimates and coverage limits outlined in the proposal above are based upon the accuracy of the information you
provided and may not represent alt coverages avaiiabte. This praposal dogs not constitute a contract or binder of insurance and premium
amounts cannot be guaranteed until coverage is purchased. This quote is valid 30 days from the date of preparation listed above. For
additional information regarding the assumptions used to grepare this proposal or to purchase insurance coverage please contact your
agent at the phone number listed above.

1091 HO 202402 Page 10f 6



Location Details:

Yaar Built: ' 1955 | Square Footage: Roof Age: 9
Construction: ' Frame | Protection Class: P1, PROTECTED ¢ | Roof Type: Flat/Built Up/Roll
Qccupancy: Short-term rental | Feetio Hydrant:  Less than 1000 fest Orange
Number of Families: 1 | Miles to Station: Less than & miles | Dwelling Type: Detached (1-4) Family

Selected Coverages, Deductibles, and Exclusions and Limitations

Limits of Liahility

Section |

Coverage A — Dweling $459,000
Coverage B — Other Structures $45,900
Coverage C ~ Personal Property $15,000
Coverage D ~Loss of Use $137,700

All Other Perils Deductible - $2,500

Water Deductible - $5,000

Theft Deductible - $5,000

Section il

Coverage E - Premises Liability

$1,000,000 each occurrance

Coverage F - Medical Paymenis fo Others $5,000 each person
Optional Coverages

Limited Fungi, Wet or Dry Rot, or Bacteria - Liability $50,000

Limited Fengl, Wet or Dry Rot, or Bacteria - Property $25,000

Limited Water Back-Up and Sump Discharge or Overflow $25,000

Specified Additionai Amount of Insurance for Coverage A Dwelting 25% of Coverage A
Personal Property Replacement Gost

Dwelling Replacement Cost

Infiation Guard 7%

Exclusions and Limitations

If you have any questions, please contact your producer, Panorama Insurance Associates inc , at {650)592-7333.

Thank you for your business.

Sinceraly,
Customer Care Department

1091 HO 202402

Page 3of6



LEASE AMENDING AGREEMENT
THIS LEASE AMENDING AGREEMENT dated this 1st day of June 2025

BETWEEN:
(the “Landlord™)
OF THE FIRST PART
-AND-
Kona Stays LLC (the “T'enant™)
OF THE SECOND PART
Background

1. The Landlord and the Tenant entered into the lease (the “Lease”) dated June 1st, 2025 for the
premises (the “Premises”) located at 7446 El Centro Way, Buena Park, CA, 90620.

2. The Landlerd and the Tenant desire to amend the Lease on the terms and conditions set forth
in this lease amending agreement {the “Agreement”).

3. This Agreement is the first amendment in the Lease.

IN CONSIDERATION OF the Landlord and Tenant agreeing to amend their existing Lease,
and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
both parties agree to keep, perform, and fulfill the promises, conditions and agreements below:

Amendments

1. The lease is amended as follows:
a. Landlord permits Kona Stays LLC to sublease or rent the Premises to any guest Tenant
deems fit for any length of stay located at 7446 El Centro Way, Buena Park, CA, 90620
during the full term of the lease. Tenant may advertise the Premises on its direct booking
website, www.Kona-Stays.com or on any third party platform Tenant deems fit such as
but not limited to FurnishedFinder, Expedia, Zillow, Airbnb, Inc., VRBO.

b. Kona Stays LIC is responsible for all transient occupancy tax, hospitality taxes and
Apartments.com fees.

c. Tenant agrees to enforce and respect quiet hours at the Premises from 10:00 PM to
7:00 AM. Tenant will ensure that all guests and subtenants are made aware of and comply
with these quiet hours to maintain a peaceful environment for neighboring residents.



d. In the event that short-term rental regulations change in Buena Park, Tenant may
terminate the lease before the end of the leasing period. Early termination becomes
effective on the last day of the month in which proper notice is delivered (e.g., if proper
notice is given on August 3, the effective date of termination would be August 31).
Alternatively, Tenant and Landlord may mutually agree in writing to a different effective
date or course of action in response to such regulatory changes.

Repairs

3. In the event of urgent repairs, the Tenant will notify Landlord immediately. If Landlord is
unable to address the issue in a timely médnner, the Tenant may arrange for their own handyman
or contractor to complete the repair. Tenant agrees to cover the cost of minor repairs (up to $500)
resulting from guest-related repairs, and will notify Landlord immediately. Landlord remains
responsible for normal wear-and-tear and major system failures. Landlord agrees to reimburse
the Tenant for reasonable repair costs related to normal wear and tear, such as water leaks,
plumbing issues, utility malfunctions, or similar problems not caused by the Tenant.

No Other Changes
4. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, all terms and conditions of the
Lease remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

5. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement will have the meanings ascribed to
them in the Lease. Headings are inserted for the convenience of the parties only and are not to be
considered when interpreting this Agreement, Words in the singular mean and include the plural
and vice versa. Words in the masculine include the feminine and vice versa. The words
“Landlord” and “Tenant" as used in this Agreement include the plural as well as the singular; no
regard for gender is intended by the language in this Agreement.

Governing Law

6. Subject to the terms of the Lease, it is the intention of the parties that this Agreement. and all
suits and special proceedings under this Agreement, be construed. in accordance with and
governed, to the exclusion of the law of any other forum, by the laws of California, witbout
regard to the jurisdiction in which any action or special proceeding may be instituted.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease Amending
Agreement as of the date first above written,

Landlord

Hona Stags 1€ Tenant



Shed =Y
9" 6
LEGEND

* Fire Extinguisher

Evacuation Route

Pool

7446 El Centro Way
Floor Plan and Site Plan

Total Rooms 5
Total Bedrooms 3
3 Sleeping areas

e  Master Bedroom — 2 Guests
¢ Bedroom 1- 2 Guests
e  Bedroom 2 — 2 Guests
Total Bathrooms 2
Proposed maximum number of guests — 6
Approximate square footage in the vacation rental unit.
e Living area 1118.68 Sq ft
¢  Covered Concrete Patio 198 Sq ft
e 2 Car Attached Garage 394.15 Sq ft
Total Site 8188 sf

The maximum number of vehicles allowed for overnight occupants , including hosts” and other long-term
residents' vehicles, and the location of designated on-site parking spaces.

e 4 Cars can park in the area designated as Parking
See Legend for Fire Extinguisher and Evacuation Route

16’ 67

Covered

rat

Concrete Patio

11° EXIT
Bath
Master
Bedroom Bedroom
1
LA Kitchen
5 Bath
) ath
- D/A
Living Room
Bedroom
2
14" 11° o 18" 6
I 11' 7% ExXIT
by
Garage e Parking
]

19" 117

WJE



1-800-342-4545 Espafiol
1-800-252-0259 TTY

M-F, 7am-8pm Sat, 7am-6pm
24 Hour Emergency Services Available H

socalgas.com

account nuveex |G DATE MALLED Apr 4, 2025 Page 10of 3
m SERVICE FOR 1-800-427-2200 English

A meter calibration adjustment factor has been incorporated in the Billing Factor for this

bill period. The calibration factor corrects small meter registration inaccuracies, effectively DueBy  Amount

reducing the recorded registration by 2%. Past Due Now $83.72

O Current Charges  4/24/25 $16.93
Did you overlook paying your last bill? Please pay the total amount due to avoid Total Amount Due $100.65

collection notices. Disregard this message if payment was already made. Thank you.

California is fighting climate change and so can you! Your bill includes a Climate Credit Usage History (Total Therms used)
from a state program to cut carbon pollution while also reducing your energy costs. Find

out how at www.cpuc.ca.gov/climatecredit. -

Account Summary ¢

Amount of Last Bill 383.72 & W

Payment Received -.00 =TT = N

Current Charges +16.93 2 ) z

Total Amount Due $100.65 ot Nesb) O¥e
Total Therms used 44 45 49
Daily average Therms 1.4 14 17

curre“t Charges Days in billing cycle 31 32 29
Your Usage: 49 Therms

> = i i i i :
Rate: GR - Residential Climate Zone Baseline Allowance: 25 Therms BASELINE OVER BASELINE
Meter Number: 05014986 (Next scheduied read date May 1 2025) Cycle: 2 25 Therms 24 Therms
: ot $1.69482 /Therm $2.08027 /Therm
Current Previous Billing BTU Total
Billing Period Days Meter Number Reading - Reading = Difference x Factor x Factor = Therms i

GAS CHARGES Amount($)
Customer Charge 29 Days x $.16438 4.77
Gas Transportation (Details below) 49 Therms —_
§ The pricing illustrated above represents cost per therm
Baseline Over Basoline for Baseline and Over Baseline Actual prices may vary
Therms used 25 24 as some credits, discounts and taxes are not added —_
RateTherm  $1.16715 $1.65260 SoCalGas is committed to protecting your
: privacy. Visit socalgas.com/PrivacyCenter
Charge $20.18 + $39.66 - 68.84 to learn about our privacy policy and -
socalgas.com/PrivacyNotice to learn how
Gas Commodity 49 Therms x $.42767 20.96 we safeguard your energy usage
California Climate Credit -86.60 information.

Total Gas Charges $7.97
(Continued on next page)

sa"’: P'aper i - Yoo
e Past Due Now $83.72
PAY ONLINE
sccalgasl..c‘cm Current Charges  4/24/25 $16.93

socalﬁas Total Amount Due $100.65

Please enter amount enclosed.

$

Wihite account number on check and
make payable to SoCalGas

1 AATA AL TN N

SoCalGas
PO BOXC
MONTEREY PARK CA 91756-5111

80 0170096215 00010065 01 0170096215 0000169301



m SoCalGas.

Request a large print bill:

ACCOUNT NUMBER DATE MAILED Apr 4, 2025 Page 20f 3
DATE DUE AMOUNT DUE 1-800-427-2200 English

1-800-252-0259 TTY
M-F, 7am-8pm Sat, 7am-6pm

1-877-238-0092 24 Hour Emergency Services Available
socalgas.com

SoCalGas' gas commodity cost per therm for your billing period: 2\3 rrg )ilsoy%ﬁ%gilrsc%ﬁgggiggcgﬁnggg ‘8“141ake

P scimonii $.33221 Mar........ §.43474 before digging. Visit socalgas.com/811 for
TAXES & FEES ON GAS CHARGES . Amount(s) more information.
State Regulatory Fee 49 Therms x $.00250 A2 Py
Public Purpose Surcharge 48 Therms x $.11884 5.82 Other Important Phone Numbers g8
Buena Park City Users Tax $100.51 x 3.00% 3.02 Far the following, call

Total Taxes and Fees on Gas Charges $8.96

Monday - Friday, 8am.-5p.m.:

B3 1-800-427-1420
Total Current Charges $16.93 sh2of 1.800-427-0471
&) 25 1-800-427-1429
Tiéng Vst 1-800-427-0478
Self Service Options available 24
hours aday, 7 daysaweek ....... 1-800-772-5050

SoCalGas Payment Locations

For information regarding payment arrangements, ofiice
locations, account balance. billing recap, duplicate bill,
Residential Past Due Bill Forgiveness through the
Arrearage Management Plan, and CARE applications
for income qualified customers

Contact 811 two days before digging to have
utility-cwned lines identified and marked. Visit
socalgas.com/811 or dial 811.

Payment Options $

Online: Register or sign into MyAccount at
myaccount.socalgas.com.

Home banking: Pay threugh your banking institution
Direct Debit: Print application at socalgas.com

or call 1-800-427-2200 for an application by mail

Pay by Phone: If already enrclled. call 1-800-427-2700
to authonze a payment

By Mail: Mail your check or money order, along with
the payment stub in the enclosed envelope

Debit/Credit Card or Electronic Check: Accepts
credit/debit cards, VISA, Wastercard, and Discover or
Electronic Checking/Savings. A convenience fee is
charged, contact BillMatrix at 1-800-232-6629 or visit
socalgas.com/WaysToPay

In Person: Visit socalgas.com/Locations.

Authorized Payment Agencies - Call the Self Service Opticns number 1-800-772-5050 for the addresses of

payment agencies in your area

Company Offices - Business Hours: Monday - Friday Sam - 5pm

Alhambra, 333 E. Main St Suite J
Anahelm, 716 S. State College Blvd
Banning. 60 E Ramsey St #A
Commerce, 5708 E. Whittier Blvd
Compten. 700 N. Long Beach Blvd.
Corona. 3415 Lincoln Ave 24
Covina, 932 N. Citrus Ave.

Delano. 1227 Jefierson St.

Dinuba, 239 E. "ulare St.

El Centro. 1111W. "“ain St

El ‘onte, 11912 - alley Bivn , Suita B
Fontana 9701 Sierra Avs #
Glenrale, 919 S. Central Ave. #B
Fanford. 420 N. 11th Ave. #10»
Femet 280 E Sletson Ave

F.oflyv.oor, 1811 E.illhurst Ave
t.untington Park, 5916 Pacific Blva
Indio, 45123 Towne Ave

Inglevwon. 3530 W Century Blvd. Ste. 102
Lancaster, 2065 W. Avenue K
Lompoc. 128 S. "F. St.

Los Angeles, 3739 Crensha« Blivd #C
Los Angeles. 45619 S. Central Ave.

Los Angeles. 2522 N. Daly St

Ontario, 962 N. Mountain Ave

Oxnard, 1640 E. Gonzales Rn
Fasadena, 1214 E Green St 2102
romona. 156 E. 3r1 St

Portenville, 5% W. ihurman Ave
Riverside, 7000 indiana Ave #105

Drop Box Location

Burbank. Public Service Department
164 W. Magnolia Bivd

San Bamardino, 1136 N. Mount vemon Ave. #305
San Femando. 444 S Brand Bivd. Suite 101
San Luls Cbispo. 2240 Emily St. Suite 140
San Pedro, 1851 N. Gafiey St Suite A
Santa Ana, 738 S. Harbor Blvd

Santa Barbara. 134 E. Victoria St

Santa Fe Springs. 11516 yelegraph Rd
Santa Maria, 550 E. Betteravia Rd. Suitz B
South Gate, 3530 iweedy Blvd

Van Nuys. 6550 Van Nuys Blvd.

Visalia, 1305 E. Noble Ave

Waits. 1666 E 103rd St

Wilmington. 926 N Avalon Bivd

SoCalGas: Delivering affo-- able, clean an: increasingly enewable ene:gy .0 more than 21 million Califo*nians.















Davis, Suzanne

From:

Sent: Tuesday, July 1, 2025 7;15 PM
To: Davis, Suzanne

Cc: Foulkes, Matt

Subject: 7446 El Centro Way

Hello Suzanne

This is in response to the courtesy notice regarding short term rental/Airbnb application for 7446 EL Centro Way,
Buena Park California.

Thank you for taking the time to speak with me this morning on the phone. As per our conversation, | would like to
confirm that William and Venshawn Button do no longer live in this house and have moved up North.
Approximately three weeks ago, there were pod moving units on the property that were there for them to pack up
their belongings..

My understanding of the criteria for the approval of this to be an Airbnb is that they be residence of the house
which is not the case. | am opposed to this house becoming an Airbnb. This neighborhood has many families with
children and elderly people. The street is narrow and parking an issue most of the time sometimes we can’t even
pull out of our driveway due to the cars. Making an Airbnb house in the neighborhood is only gonna add to an
already congested situation. .

Again, thank you for taking the time to speak with me and | appreciate your consideration on mine and my family’s
feelings on this matter.




T

Coastal Disney Escape | 5 Beds, Pool, Gym, i)\

Games | & Share Q Save

i3t Show all photos ] '

ome in Buena Park, California

i guests - 3 bedrooms - 4 beds - 2 baths -$_2’574 for 5 nights
* New - 1review

( S
CHECK-IN CHECKOUT

7/7/2025 7/12/2025

s Hosted by Kona
e P GUESTS

wiye  Superhost - 2 years hosting 1guest v
. A
1@!’ Outdoor entertainment Re
The firepit, pool, alfresco dining, and bbq area are great for
summer trips. You won't be charged yet

2 Konais aSuperhost
Superhosts are experienced, highly rated Hosts. Be Report this listing



= Welcome to our breezy, coastal-inspired retreat in
Buena Park—minutes from Disneyland and one mile away
from famous Beach Boulevard attractions such as Knott’s
Berry Farm, Medieval Times, as well as local eats like The
Source Orange County! Perfect for families & friends, this
fun home offers relaxing vibes, a private pool, and a garage
gym. Whether you're here for theme park thrills or food
adventures, it's the perfect spot to make lasting memorie...

Show more

Nhere you’ll sleep 1/2 >

Bedroom 1 Bedroom 2
1T queen bed 1king bed
What this place offers

Pm Kitchen

=  Wifi

Dedicated workspace

D Ik

Free parking on premises





















RESOLUTION NO.
SHORT TERM RENTAL PERMIT NO. STR-25-000003

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
BUENA PARK APPROVING A REQUEST FOR A SHORT-TERM RENTAL
UNIT NO. STR-25-000003, LOCATED AT 7446 El CENTRO WAY, WITHIN
THE RS-6 (SINGLE-FAMILY) ZONE, AND MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT
THEREOF

A. Recitals

(i) Vershawn Britton, applicant, 7446 El Centro Way, Buena Park, CA 90620, filed an
application for the issuance of Short-Term Rental (“STR”) Permit No. STR-25-000003 on April
18, 2025 to allow the operation of a STR unit within a single-family home located at 7446 El
Centro Way, Buena Park, California (the “Property”). Hereinafter in this Resolution, the subject
Short-Term Rental Permit request is referred to as the “application”.

(i) The City Council approved Ordinance No. 1675 in January 2020, to allow and
regulate short-term rentals in the City of Buena Park.

(iii) In addition to requirements and standards for the site, building and operation of a
short-term rental, is a requirement that the property owner reside on the property as their
primary residence.

(iv) The applicant submitted a Short-Term Rental Permit application on April 18, 2025,
via the City’s online web portal (RentalScape) for the operation of a short-term rental at the
subject address.

(v) Pursuant to Buena Park Municipal Code (BPMC) Section 19.348.080.D.2, the City
sent out notices of the applicant’s request to all property owners within 300-feet of the subject
property.

(vi) The City received several written and verbal concerns and/or comments from
surrounding property owners regarding the proposed short-term rental including concerns
about noise, safety, speeding, street parking and whether the home was still occupied as the
primary residence by the property owner(s).

(vii)  Pursuant to BPMC 19.348.080.D.4, If the Director determines supplemental
evidence at a public hearing is warranted in order to determine whether an applicant will
adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts to the public health, safety, or welfare due to
substantial concerns raised by neighbors, or to evaluate the impacts of a concentration of uses,
under subsection D.3 above, the Director shall notice a public hearing of the Planning
Commission. The Planning Commission is authorized to deny, approve, or conditionally
approve the permit in accordance with the criteria set forth in Section 19.348.080.

(viii)  The Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing on July 23, 2025
and concluded said hearing prior to making a determination on the subject application.

(ix) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.



Resolution No.
Short Term Rental Permit No. STR-25-000003
July 23, 2025

B. Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is found, determined and resolved by the Planning

Commission of the City of Buena Park as follows:

1.

The Planning Commission hereby specifically finds that all the facts set forth in the Recitals,
Part A, of this Resolution are true and correct and incorporate them herein as part of the
Planning Commission’s findings.

Based upon substantial evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-
referenced hearing, including written staff reports, public testimony, the above recitals, and
the STR application materials and development plans, this Commission hereby specifically
finds as follows:

a. The proposed STR is consistent with the City’s General Plan and Zoning Ordinance,
as conditioned. STR units are permissible in the RS-6 single-family zoning district
with the approval of a STR Permit.

b. The site is adequate in size, shape, location, and other factors, to accommodate the
Applicant’s request. Based on the required conditions of approval, there will be no
conflicts or incompatibility created based on the physical characteristics and details
of the proposed unit.

c. Adequate vehicle access, traffic capacity, and parking are available to serve the
proposed STR unit based on the required conditions of approval and restrictions on
parking set forth in this Resolution.

The Applicant has provided evidence that they will adequately mitigate potential adverse
impacts on the public health, safety, and welfare which may be associated with the
operation of a STR. The City has imposed through its STR Ordinance along with additional
operating conditions of approval contained in this Resolution, which are intended to further
mitigate potential adverse impacts on the public health, safety, and welfare.

The Applicant has provided “House Rules” which must be observed by all renters of the
STR, said rules designed to proactively address issues before they can lead to potential
adverse impacts to the neighborhood.

The Planning Commission hereby finds and determines that the approval of this Resolution
is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act
pursuant to Class 1 — Existing Facilities, Section 15301 of Division 6 of Title 14 of the
California Code of Regulations and none of the exceptions under Section 15300.2 apply.

Based upon the findings and conclusions set forth this Resolution, this Commission hereby
approves the application subject to the STR-25-000003 application materials and the
following conditions set forth in this Resolution.

The following conditions are deemed necessary to protect the public health, safety, and

general welfare and are reasonable and proper in accordance with the purpose and intent
of the Buena Park City Code:

Page 2



Resolution No.
Short Term Rental Permit No. STR-25-000003
July 23, 2025

a. The STR Operator shall provide their personal contact phone number and email
address to any property owner or rental tenant within a 300-foot radius of the site,
upon any request for the contact information. Operator shall be responsive to correct
any adverse impact issues reported from any contacts from any property owners or
rental tenants.

b. Check-in/initial arrival time shall be between the hours of 7:00am and 9:00pm.
Arriving renters or guests shall only access the STR via the front door.

c. There shall be no amplified music or sound after 7:00pm Sunday through Thursday
and on Friday and Saturday there shall be no amplified music or sound after 9:00pm.

d. All parking spaces for renters, guests, and host occupants shall occur on-site in the
driveway or garage. Street parking shall be for visitors only and shall be limited to
the curb along the property’s street frontage.

e. STR renters or guests shall not use front yard areas (e.g. areas of the site in front
of the house) for any assembly or loitering. Said areas of the property shall be used
only for pedestrian transition through the property from sidewalk, street, and
driveway areas into the STR or rear yard areas.

f. The STR permit shall be subject to a Planning Commission “6-month compliance
update” presentation from staff agenized under “old business” with discussion to
include a report concerning code compliance and recommendations for any
necessary actions, if warranted. Thereafter, any additional compliance updates
shall be agendized by the Director or Planning Commission as may be deemed
necessary.

g. Priorto commencement of the approved use, these conditions and all improvements
shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City.

h. The Applicant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City, its officers, agents,
and employees from any and all claims and losses whatsoever occurring or resulting
to any and all persons, firms, or corporations furnishing or supplying work, services,
materials, or supplies in connection with the performance of the use permitted
hereby or the exercise of the rights granted herein, any and all claims, lawsuits or
actions arising from the granting of or the exercise of the rights permitted by this
STR Permit, and from any and all claims and losses occurring or resulting to any
person, firm, corporation, or property for damage, injury, or death arising out of or
connected with the performance of the use permitted hereby. Applicant's obligation
to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City as stated hereinabove shall
include, but not be limited to, paying all fees and costs incurred by legal counsel of
the City's choice in representing the City in connection with any such claims, losses,
lawsuits, or actions, and any award of damages, judgments, verdicts, court costs or
attorneys' fees in any such lawsuit or action.

Page 3



Resolution No.
Short Term Rental Permit No. STR-25-000003
July 23, 2025

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of July 2025, by the following called vote:

AYES: COMMISSIONERS:

NOES: COMMISSIONER:

ABSENT: COMMISSIONER:

ABSTAINED: COMMISSIONER:
Deborah Diep
Chair

ATTEST:

Harald Luna

Planning Manager

Page 4



Resolution No.
Short Term Rental Permit No. STR-25-000003

July 23, 2025

AFFIDAVIT OF ACCEPTANCE:

I/'We do hereby accept all of the conditions contained in this document and all other
conditions imposed by Conditional Use Permit No. STR-25-000003 and do agree that I/We

shall conform with and abide by all such conditions.

Date:

Owner/Applicant’s Signature

Page 5



RESOLUTION NO.
SHORT TERM RENTAL PERMIT NO. STR-25-000003

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
BUENA PARK DENYING A REQUEST FOR A SHORT-TERM RENTAL
UNIT NO. STR-25-000003, LOCATED AT 7446 EI CENTRO WAY, WITHIN
THE RS-6 (SINGLE-FAMILY) ZONE, AND MAKING FINDINGS IN
SUPPORT THEREOF

A. Recitals

(i) Vershawn Britton, applicant, 7446 El Centro Way, Buena Park, CA 90620, filed an
application for the issuance of Short-Term Rental (“STR”) Permit No. STR-25-000003 on April
18, 2025 to allow the operation of a STR unit within a single-family home located at 7446 El
Centro Way, Buena Park, California in the County of Orange (the “Property”). Hereinafter in this
Resolution, the subject Short-Term Rental Permit request is referred to as the “application.”

(i) The City Council approved Ordinance No. 1675 in January 2020, to allow and
regulate short-term rentals in the City of Buena Park.

(iii) The applicant submitted a Short-Term Rental Permit application on April 18, 2025
via the City’s online web portal (RentalScape) for the operation of a short-term rental at the
subject address.

(iv) Pursuant to Buena Park Municipal Code (BPMC) Section 19.348.080, the City sent
out notices of the applicant’s request to all property owners within 300-feet of the subject
property.

(v) The City received several written and verbal concerns and/or comments from
surrounding property owners regarding the proposed short-term rental including concerns
about noise, safety, speeding, street parking and whether the home was in fact still occupied
as the primary residence by the property owners.

(vi) Pursuant to BPMC 19.348.080.D.4, If the Director determines supplemental
evidence at a public hearing is warranted in order to determine whether an applicant will
adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts to the public health, safety, or welfare due to
substantial concerns raised by neighbors, or to evaluate the impacts of a concentration of uses,
under subsection D.3 above, the Director shall notice a public hearing of the Planning
Commission. The Planning Commission is authorized to deny, approve, or conditionally
approve the permit in accordance with the criteria set forth in Section 19.348.080.

(vii)  The Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing on July 23, 2025
and concluded said hearing prior to making a determination on the subject application.

(viii)  All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.



Resolution No.
Short Term Rental Permit No. STR-25-000003
July 23, 2025

B. Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is found, determined and resolved by the Planning

Commission of the City of Buena Park as follows:

1.

The Planning Commission hereby specifically finds that all the facts set forth in the Recitals,
Part A, of this Resolution are true and correct and incorporate them herein as part of the
Planning Commission’s findings.

Based upon substantial evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-
referenced hearing, including written staff reports, public testimony, the above recitals, and
the STR application materials and development plans, this Commission hereby specifically
finds that the proposed STR will have substantial public health, safety and general welfare
impacts to the surrounding neighborhood and the Applicant has not provided sufficient
evidence that they will adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts on the public health,
safety, and welfare which may be associated with the operation of a STR.

The Planning Commission hereby finds and determines that the Resolution to deny STR-
25-000003 is Categorically Exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental
Quality Act pursuant to Class 1 — Existing Facilities, Section 15301 of Division 6 of Title 14
of the California Code of Regulations and none of the exceptions under Section 15300.2

apply.

Based upon the findings and conclusions set forth this Resolution, this Commission hereby
Denies STR-25-000003.

Pursuant to BPMC 19.348.080.D.4, the decision by the Planning Commission is final.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of July 2025, by the following called vote:

AYES: COMMISSIONERS:

NOES: COMMISSIONER:

ABSENT: COMMISSIONER:

ABSTAINED: COMMISSIONER:
Deborah Diep
Chair

ATTEST:

Harald Luna

Planning Manager

Page 2



	PlanningCommission-2025-07-24
	Item 3A. 
	2025-07-09 PC M Draft
	Item 4A. 
	Vicinity Map
	Ordinance 1675
	Applicants submittal information site and floor plan_Redacted
	Correspondence received from 300ft notice_Redacted
	Additional materials received_Redacted
	STR25-000003- Resolution to Approve
	STR25-000003- Resolution to Deny

